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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND OHIGINAL {IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

312 Dast Broad Street is the location of the home and remaining propariy of Joseph
Edward Birch dating back to 1849, when he =2cquired the southeast corner of the John
Tramm21l patent 1n a court settlement., The house, which Grigg, Wood and Browne date
to the 1840s, anf which was on the property in 1845 according to the land records at
Fairfax Court House, wes originally a simplz one-and-one-half story Grask Revival
structure built parallel to the Alexandria-Leesburg Turnpike (now Fast Broad Street).
At some point, probably just after Birch's purchase, the roof was raisel to provide a
full second story. This provided two rooms down and four small rooms un. The original
east-west gable roof is still in place under the higher and newer (1873) roof, the
gatle end of which faces the street. Plaster marks and lath nails on thz under side
of the original roof joists attest to the time when the building was one and one-half
stories. Go do various features 1n the east and west walls of the second floor rooms.

Recent investigations.cn. the part of the Falls Church Historical Comrission and the

Northern Virginia Chapter of the Archaeological Society of Virginia indicate that the

kitchen was a small detached structure approximately fifteen feet from ths rear of the
east end of the house. From the lower floor of this kitchen, a narrow winding stair
ascends to a small overhead room -- possible servants quarters.

At some point, probably about 1873, the house was enlarged by an exitension across
the rear of the original I structure on both flgors, with the old and new sections
enclosed under a new roof with its gable end toward the street. This extsnsion con-
nectad to, but did not enclose, the original kitchen. A porch across the front was
added much later than the apparently original east porch. The house sits close to the
ground and is supported by a rough fieldsitons foundation.

The partial basement, underlying roughly two-thirds of the original I structure,
has stone walls on the north {front), west and rear, with earth to the east. Before
the present stairs were installed, there was an outside exit adjacent to the east side
of the present stairs. The flaor joists are rough unpeeled logs hewn on the top side
only.

Inside the front door there is a narrow center hall with a straight staircase to
the second floor. These stairs date from the 1870s, the earlier stairs having had a
bend and landing widway. To the right is a living room which did have e fisldstone
Pireplace and chimney., This fireplace and chimney has been removed and was replaced
with only a brick chimney. A square double-width arch connects this original room
and the 1870s room behind it, forming & double parlor.

To the left of the front door is a narrow room with the house's only fireplace.
Doors exit east to the porch, to a "sun room," which probably dates from the 1920s,
and to the 1870s dining room behind it. There is also an east exit from the 1870s
dining room to a brick patio, which incorporates several square paving blocks of the
style produced locally about 1770.

Upstairs thsre are two front (north) rooms, with a modern bath behind the north-
west room. There are also two rear rooms in the 1870s extension. Between the two
rear rooms, a straight staircase ascends to the attic where there was, at one time,

a. large water tank which provided gravity flow for water pumpsd from the well on the
wast side of the house.

To the south-east of the original kitchen was a two-story storage shed or smoke
house -~ possibly both. The lower portion, like a bank barn, was entered from the
rear. The remaining masonry walls of nondescript bricks and stone may have been

{See Continuation Sheet # 1)
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Description - continued

cannivalized from the foundation of the originsl barn immediately west. The upper
portion, entered from the front, was frame. A structure on this spot appears on
the 1878 Hopkins Map. The frame superstructure fell down from its own weakened
condition about 1968, At either end of this structure are stone and brick founda-
tions for the outside privies of earlier times. _

There was a chicken house to the south and east of the smoke house.

The original bank barn was a frame structure about 30'x 40'set on a stone founda-
tion. The upper entrance was from the turnpike side, with the lower entrance at the
rear. A grandson of Joseph E. Birch recalls that the barn was built with an ex-
tension from the southwest corner on the upper level, This served as a shop. There
were horse stalls on the lower level as well as a mllking area with stanchions., In
the 1920s the barn had detericrated to the point that the frame structure was de-
molished and a frame one-and-one-half story, 3-bay, 20'x 30'garage wes buillt on
portions of the original north and west foundailon wall. A now unused pertion of
the original barn foundation still stands to the east and at the southwest corner
of the garage. The lower level continued to be used as a chicken hou & and barn,
with a dogz-run hehind 14, into the 13950s.

Joseph Edward Birch was a blacksmith, ameng other things, and pursued this activ-
ity in a small shop.at the north-east corner of the property (now in the front yard
of 322 FEast Broad Street). Preliminary archasological exploration has con¢irmed
ihe location of this shop. There was another blacksmith shop imediately eas
(on the east side of Cherry Street). Thesse, and the tollgate almost dlrectl3
opposite are shown on the Army Engineer's Mep of 1862. A roadwey extended from
The turnpike between the house and barn end on south to the rest of the farm.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Joseph Edward Birch and his descendants played an important part in the life of Falls
Church for over a century and a quarter. Joseph E. Birch came to Falls Church in 1841
from Alexandria County where he was born on May 2, 1818, Information on his ancestors
and descendants can be found in Steadman's Falls Church: By Fence and Firaside, pp..
251-269, He moved to Falls Church in 1841 and leased a portion of Wintar Hili, where
be seems to have established his blacksmith trade.

In 1849 Joseph E. Birch came into ownership of two ascres and 17 poles of property
for $105.00, including the house at 312 Zast Broad._ ,Two years later, his father-in-law,
Orrin Orton, bought the 150-acre Winter Hill Estatei/ lying to the east and scuth around
Birch's recent acquisition. Another yesar later, in 1852, Birch bought the Winter Hill
"panhandle"{south of 312 East Broad Street) from Mr. Orton. He subsagquently would ac-
guire additional land extending south to the present-day U.S. 50 {Arlington Boulevard),
totalling 150 ascres, and farmed this while continuing his trade as = blacksmith and
serving as a local clvic lezder.

Delphina Orton Birch died in November 1853, aged 22 years, without issua. In May
1855, Joe Birch married Mary Elizabeth Speer, of a prominent Oakton, Virginia, family.
Joe Birch died in 1892 and Mary in 1901. They had elght children -- four boys and
four girls. Frank List Birch, born in May 1858, lived his entire life st 312, with
the sxception of a few years early in the 20th Century when he opsrated a dairy farm
opposite the presont National Mamorial Cemetery. Frank List Birch died at 312 in
June 1939. In December 1882, he had merrisd Flora Belle Crossman, of another promi-
nent Falls Church family. (Her father also had been a founding alderman of the town,
and her great-nephew would serve as Chairman of the Loudoun County Board of Super-
visors in the 1970s.) Flora lived at 312 until her death in 1956.

Frank and Flora had four children, all of whom lived most of thelir lives at 312,
Their son, Isaszc, died in 1940; Mary in 1957; and Essie, the last of the family to
live at 312, died in 1968. Like their parents and grandparents, the children were
active leaders in the town and in the work of Dulin Chapel. Befors 1248, Frank's
last surviving son, Milton and wife, Pauline Waite, had moved to Fairfax City.

Milton died on January 13, 1976. His death Tollowed by five days his dzeading of
the remaining 2.46 acres of his grandfather's 150 acres to Historic Falls Church, Inc.

(See Continuation Sheet # 2)

y Formerly owned by Col. James Wren, somxstime sheriff of Fairfax
County, ordinary operator, vestrymen of Falrfax Parish, and noted
architect (Fairfax Court House, The Falls Church, and, by deriva-
tion, Pohick Church and Christ Church, Alexandria),
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Significance - continued
A responsible, community-minded family through the lives of three zenerations, the

Birches contributed much to the life of the village end town. Josesh 3. Birch ausisted
rmaterially in the incorporation of Falls Church as a town (1875) and was a member of
the first town council. He was one of the founders of Jefferson Scheocl directly
across the turnpike from his property, and his house was home to meny of the early
Jefferson teachers. This school was the only school in the vicinity of Falls Church
in its day. Birch was a irustee of the Methodist Society's pioneer Fzirfax Chapel
and its successor, Dulin Chapel (now Dulin United Methodist Church). He was one of
tae first in the commnity to see the need for a public cemetery, helzing to establish
Cakwood Cemetery, located on Roosevelt Street ab the gzstern end of the City.

The children and grandchildren of Joseph E. Birch have all msintainaed a record of

responsible, constructive citlzenship. The restoration of the Birch Zsuse and the
developmeut of the adjacent ground will be a permansnt memorial to trhis family, as
well 25 to the gualities of citizenship their lives have reflectead.

The original portion of the house was built before ..c-rp, enlc..“'gea ; ward in the
wJ;Oa, and expanded to approximetely double its original space in tha 1272s. Wo

vbstantial changes wers made after that, so the present appearancs 57 the house has
teen maintained as part of our visible envirormment for orne hundred vesrs. It is a
visible testimony to the growth of this part of Virginis relative tc the growth in
the Nation's Capitol in the Jacksonian and late Reconstruction eras,

The house also 1s sited nsar the center of a block of five 19th Cszrtury houses,
and serves as the visusl centerpiece for this unususlly well-preservel 13th Century
Virginia village streztscapa. The property is protecszd by coqerbhﬁ:, 2s is the
surrounding land. HNew construction in the block 1s being controlled For archi-
tactural compatibility. Recognition as a Virginia lanimark seems addisicnally
soropriate because of tha visibhllity of the property located on Routz 7 --
eriously known as Broad Street, Lsesburg Pike, Harry Flcod Byrd Higzvay, and the
Alaxandria-Leesburg Turnpike. It was a pre-historic Indian trail, szd the route
of Braddock's fateful merch to Fort Necessity, and still is well travellad.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

312 Bast Broad Street is on the south side of the street. It is thz third
parcel west of Cherry Street and the fourth parcel #8st of East Pairfax Sireet.
It is an approximate square and is identified on the City's Real Property
Identification Map as Parcel 1, Subdiv. No. ((25)), Sec. 1l; and in the Land
Records of Fairfax County as Parcel 1, Wren's Corner Subdivision.

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES
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